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AT ST SAehebl ATH R05Y T HIGEF Fiqaad daR [axiia &l THE gaFe® 99 THR EH G

%1, AT FFAAEE (Credit Deposit Ratios)

Class “A” Class “B” Class “C” Overall
1 Total Deposit/GDP (%) 105.02 10.76 2.33 118.10
2 | Total Credit/GDP (%) 84.43 9.08 1.81 95.31
3 |Total Credit/Deposit (%) 80.39 84.37 77.67 80.70
4 | Credit/Deposit (%) 79.02 84.05 76.86 79.43
5 Fixed Deposit/Total Deposit (%) 51.53 55.47 66.79 52.19
6 Saving Deposit/Total Deposit (%) 34.05 34.43 23.25 33.87
7 Current Deposit/Total Deposit (%) 6.15 2.22 1.29 5.69
8 Call Deposit/Total Deposit (%) 7.52 7.84 7.92 7.56
9 NPL/Total Loan (%) 4.73 5.1 12.85 4.92
10 |Total LLP/Total Loan (%) 5.05 4.93 10.87 5.15
11 | Deprived Sector Loan/Total Loan(%) 5.74 7.47 7.05 5.93
Wean Fue® (Liquidity Ratios)
Class “A” | Class “B” | Class “C” Overall
1 |Cash & Bank Balance/Total Deposit (%) 7.95 6.73 7.94 7.84
2 |Investment in Government Securities/Total Deposit (%) 17.11 14.41 13.30 16.79
3 |Total Liquid Assets/Total Deposit (%) 25.99 23.56 28.61 25.82
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¢sft waiwran saaes (Capital Adequacy Ratios)

Class “A” Class “B” Class “C” Overall
1 |Core Capital/RWA (%) 9.53 9.90 10.80 9.58
2 |Total Capital/RWA (%) 12.34 12.55 13.09 12.37
fa<fr wg=r (Financial Access)
Class “A” Class “B” Class “C” Overall
No of institutions 20 17 17 54
No of branches 5,078 1,132 291 6,501
No of deposit accounts 49,651,137 7,339,256 935,402 57,925,795
No of loan accounts 1,605,815 275,950 43,959 1,925,724
No of branchless banking centres 1,048 17 - 1,065
No. of branchless banking customers 298,473 1,374 - 299,847
No. of Mobile Banking Customers 22,535,858 3,526,503 273,756 26,336,117
No of internet Banking Customers 1,487,355 613,888 17,141 2,118,384
No of ATMs 4,845 344 40 5,229
No. of Debit Cards 12,117,170 1,172,122 73,882 13,363,174
No. of Credit Cards 304,588 2,017 - 306,605
No of Prepaid Cards 216,309 2,855 - 219,164
o X (Interest Rates %)
1 Weigtage Average Interest Rate on Deposit 4.75
Saving Account 3.34
Fixed Account 6.51
Call Account 1.21
2 Weightage Average Interest Rate on Credit 8.69
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AT ST T I=odq AT AT T dorel [SqTdiee @t T T TRUHT T | AT T AT ATERTATRT AT
HraTee afhg JaTHT 8Y STvaT 8% TMEhdTs Wge S AT el G |

(&) A ATEHR AR T T

AT kg ARTIHT e faq Hfqeqetars AfTehare dRTH T4T HeATSHh e A{ehg GATIHT F@T TH
AALTHATATS FHITGT T T FAHAT (AT TAT FAT FATEE (b9 TS, | AFHT AT ATT YTaeh a4
RN &raeEdrs w5 (a=gHT ARa TeFewad! AavTFdT T ARATATS (AT a7 =TT T Tgiefept
ferepTar 7T | Sehebl GTTeqeITcrer TTdTehT AT AT SR AT ek THE e TS, | AfeTd aofept
qfe=Td TeHATd WA UTehetedh Yara] o TTA] FAFHEE Bisd T TAEERR] A afdd T4 gaeT
TR |

@ TEF JAT AR Arsr

ATepehT Srehepl TARATATE Toll o7 (AT TIoTT el ATRAT BT STTAHT TUTCHE HSehl A HAAT J]
qUR! Tele®dls (A1ad & | TAHT AN Alfehehl AEhemh] Aiaars HIAH Ak AT TTehewedl TEard
TS o9 AT TF TrIeewedl (TR TS, |

TG FTAHT AN TTERETeh] ArSClehT ATNT AT Glaterehl ITANT TlecTl ITERHAT JaT FATEHT SIS fawTehl ATHT
Hrared dfepg (fA3eTeR! HIaTge q¥eRare q@d =era+ (A, Electronic Cheque Clearing, IPS Tfaemeet

AT 9% TRUS G | YTehehl T JATHT ANTEE TH FHAREEATS AATHT qNAHS] FaedT T aris
FATATER TS AN] TRUBT G | YTaheh] Arqels 3o qeHl HIAA ACT FHAREEATS ATTIT AT |
@) sirifae @

AT ITCZ Sfebel qTMeh [GURT Goiehl SERAT AT Aebel I FRITeAeh BT &HT FRIATRHT FIBid TIAS, | T
HALATHT SAfehg TaT TAT Faam TN X ATIRE T FEATTAT ETeEHT Febol ATHAT MRS [Fed® T
TR fams | T Shate 99 AR fedrdr #r & faear T aaia are guwr qfedr v fay st
IR ST q, FAE oA R, AR (et T § T 9197 [SeaTAT § &2 TR0 hIRTHT ¥ 92T s
faeam e |

(B) ARAH ARTA AT

Stepepl BT &7 faRaR TR AT SAFeTaneTs TRl G FIATaT TS | Tt AN [FErTerT
ATTATS AThYUF AT THATIRT FGEITIHHT [ghTerel qrerddr Fed T FaRo afvq @ | 9w afakm
T=oATAT AN ATEAH @l THTATSTA T Yo A, |

(®) Sifew eI

qo AT IF FEATHT S Sebel I ATH ThReHT SMGHee bl ATHAT I 57, | GeATe hTHebT qEardard
fasTT g7 SREHE®® SAT T A AT T A0 TRUH B | 2T RSS! qfe=r U fdqaraead!
TUAAT A (HGTHT N7 T Haear FaadRl awrss ANUHS; | THHT AN FAMNGH (TR T FHT

HSHChChI Ig e ?ﬂgﬁaﬂ_{ g_"f SITE ! AT THA 5;&' Aty lebl RERS] IHC'IIS'\CM B | TEATH NEEIKEHR
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AT, TR, T FAT AT, T AT, 8T, AFMATHT G THRFT AN GHEGH g TN ATHLT T Th
e fegas |

() AT YATET AT T& FHAT Atgfg Aran

FFWRIHE HTT ATATARO TR IIH AT FATIAATS [F6Td TAT AEATT TRAS, | TqHT AT gfasaaicas
Y TARATE AT ATheedrg I GAle Tal “ET9T 91 A1 Afcheedrs fqeqer, aweefl ¥ faearfaar
FATE GUTATRT Faerrad TRAE | e giasqgiare gare TRUET FHAEEae g GE7 G139,
AAITAAT TET A€ FgE ITH qdT TIEN FAAqTF qfg IBRATA A7 qvg g+ favarg faguar 3 |
Fa1 19 T @9 gfaa 9 Far wXgrars fawar qur fawra a9 wHAiETag M arfay qur aw
TIATETHA® FARHEE AT Ta ATTH G | FHATR AT (ATTTHTAAATS TTATHT &TTAT, STHIATIHT
waear 7 Afeg e gfqeaatsr arawar amwfas avAwrsts qar gar a7 Frdars Fatag gfearer soe
fase @ |

() STARAPR Frerer

A9 Ara qar 74t fafy ¥ gfafaers scnfas s ITERT T T4 @A d1dg T AAEr g | aRare
ATTaEATIAH SACATITHT F FhRebl T AFTER] AG2AT fqoiar g Afaq FH=rd Jar fatqawmaeiar
FUFT TG HATT THITHHT TTee (e T8 TN Fecd SeqT=a=or I A SFaereas s, | STLABR ToTT
FATEAT & Feof U rEEHNA STl HAaad S, |

F e ARAT Mfed 1 aadr, fTRErT gfdel demedr T 10 T J9aAT AdY TEwg | S

B | AT AISAA HHAD! H1d HUTET HeAT3H AHSThl ATGRAT T HATET AATGRT AT T ]
fHegUe 3 |

(@) wTE FAEE Jatagee TR

HE ATl AHATT geare dred dW Aiive depider faera T aiquia s | FEmiEEdl
HAEAATS AAANIF TS FHARGER] HAFFTEA THIRE TaH TEId ATIRHAT HeATEHhA qgidenl fahr

¥ FHHEATH] G Gfafeed TAaead ITANT TS, | FEATH ATRRAT & [aearars arargd T4 UF JeImrd
farefor qar el I HARATIAATE A6 TAT JAe® Biteel T TEANT qF TN FAAT JUITelr ¥ graferer

(@Y

SAFLATIH, T HIAATHT @R AT T FE AT TeTs TAEHN] FaLATITH AN Icaadhed ATTIIGH]
SYART A |

A=THT TF FATHT I T ARSI TH FTAaTHl Jocd@ HUH AT AaEITEEHT Telemeh]
ART FEINTAT AThd ol q9T G¥h1a fas R IRERd W el g A= dodrded arard faae
e TS |

¥) g qfwer i IhaR “Your Easy Financial Partner”

“TUTEHT QT o ARIR? T | AT AT TEFeedls [@el, BiRar ¥ 9 TedWiqu qaware s

THGE AT Y& TEREHT TFI0 FRATATEEH 99 fafed @ | T8 FId sbal (HFTiad Feed Srg
feuR el ART STHITTH FaT T TS ATSEH T
%) AT AHHT T S STAATHT S T4

TG I A TR BRI [ =i, &ofl, afheg gfafa (Hrers afes, ta.oa.ug. dfes, arefroa,),
foeam T qur fawessr awar fadim gerar afeq dfEs Jar vem T Y Fdivad WWHeRHTT TUR
[IAITTE JREAT FT (AT T HIRT TS, |
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q) TMEFTs 9T e T UG i Rt

T A=A AEFewdls AT AT A=A d qdq=, faira qar difgs Aifq, Fafrad =AM sgeaargE
ARG e THT I qa7 IUIh (A R G ARG | IAT [hIaHeT IR Jiesal 2Amr
AT AT AR (TATAT THA (T =TI T ool ge I BT Sohedl (98T ITEhTs; |

M) et s fai dar

TG AT sebel Gad Fatar fafer garT A faxirr Far afTers T o) AT BT T T Aan a9 fHe
TATSHT WS f&ws | BTerarel sebel UH.97e.fq. A, =, Hiamgd dAfehg Ffaar T HRIERE! ATHNT TF.UTH.TH.
AT 9T g ST&T Giaegdl ATaid qares Garaadl ATsddhadl § A (Hed AtawHr s o ua. qlaer
FATATH] ATSAHT AT FAtraa ApraeEare @aa g T fes deied ¥ fae #e amad I
yiafaraeh AfaaTes TS AN HAAT el FHE THT &7 =My |

o) T FHaEEaf/f i dar

T AT FHARIEEH FHAT ATTaTg TTHT Sebel TTEhewells AT [axTd JaT G T TS T
FITHT faeare s | AET AN FHEAREER AT GY A=T SY AMAH, AR AR qar J=ithar ¥
qRTHET AT HFEdT FAATSUHT B |

¥) ¥ TUH F GG G O

Iepel UTEeFATE FHolTebl ATNT =M1 A0 RIS T Tt ¥ Toer {1t yeara Fafe forr T sgaean
fregusr @ | Sed For Gt AU TET a9Er A A, v, St @re farae feraer
39T ¥ 9Tl Fafedd UHe®HT SUHT SAedTe® 99 QU FqH1 e TS, |

=) YA Aieqasr T o

STFHT HERT Aied faxir FaT fad FEpr [ T+ FIS=1 @R TRUES qre Ieheed T dfaar giear gaferd
TTEhd! FEPRAT HA @R ATaTed  (THERR /I / a1/ JART /el / SasTeal / SATSTal / FATheT /

........... ) T BTN TaebTa T F7eiT Teehlg | T &l YTEhe® HRER T4 ATSaT AfTal Hged AT sebel
fereare Tr@er @ |

¥) S we® (Values of the bank): GREET

S AT T el @ HIMEw ATCHATT 1T SAfehg a1 FaTad T4 TCHAT TSRAT ATRAT Gg qMe=T ¥
TG TTIAT §2 A THT Febel faeame faueprs :

Greetings

We strive to follow the richness of our indigeneous hospitality culture and adopt the same
in our organization. Every emploeyees of the bank shall establish the habit of Namaste/
Darshan/Pranam/Sewaro/Sewa/Jhorle/Tashidelek/Jojolapa/Fyafulla/Chhyajalo/
Sewanung/......... in every actions of our banking service.

Responsible

Our every decisions shall be done being responsible towards the community at the
grassroot and the nation as a whole.

Explorers

We believe and welcome new thoughts and innovation brings comfort, high security and
greater change in the working environment.
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Eco friendly

We strive to turn most of our banking operations digital, with mimimal use of paper; and
go green within the office premises including working stations; and support for clean
green environment through our products and CSR activities.

Teamwork

We believe on collaboration, collective discussion; and wisdom of each member for the
empowered team.

%) FFPN AP AR FAET

‘in 000’
Financial Indicators FY 79/80 FY 80/81 Poush 2081
Deposit 933,203 1,042,319 1,227,447
Loan (including staff loan) 804,019 951,961 1,083,897
Investment - 93,276 192,930
Cash and Cash Equivalent 513,445 345,987 285,062
Non —Performing Loan 2.93% 3.80% 5.71%
Mobile Banking Users - - 3.72
No. of deposit accounts 33 35 37
Net Liquidity Ratio 53.78% 42.05% 36.15%
SLR 53.78% 42.05% 36.15%
CAR 23.78% 18.96%
Credit/Deposit Ratio 74.69% 76.39% 76.12%
Base Rate 11.99% 10.38% 10.90%
Total Loan Loss Provision 24 573 21,175 38,214
Profit (3,236) 312 (1,392)
Book Value per share 101.51 101.20 -
No. of staffs 67 67 65

FATHT T FATHT AT TR0 SRRATSIeed a9 IAIaTHl Sot@ HUH! A AaEITEEHT Teleea]
ART RN ATha Todlle qaT G9hTd f65 ovh aRegd T4 GedRT Tens 9= goarad arafd a1y
ATIE e |

EPRELE

Tk T3
qT, FoATAS AHIT
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D.G.B.A. Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
The Shareholders of Salpa Bikas Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have oudited the occompanying financial statements of M/s, Salpa Bikes Bank Limited, Diktel,
Khotang, Mepal |hereinafter referred to os “the bank”), which comprises the stotement of financial
posifion as at Ashad 31, 2081 [July 15, 2024] and statement of prefit or loss, statement of cash flow
& statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes (hereinafter referred to as
“the financial stotements").

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements glve a true and fair view, in oll material respects,
of the financial pesition of the bank as at Ashad 31, 2081 [July 15, 2024) and its finencial performance
and Its cash flows for the year then ended on that dote in accordance with Nepal Financiol Reporting
Standards (NFRS).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our oudit in occordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing [N5As). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the ouditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the bank In accordance with the Institute of
Chartered Accountent of Nepal's code of ethics for professional accountonts together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant te our audit of the financicl statements in Mepal, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those requirements. We belleve thot the oudit
evidences we have obtained are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien.

Key Audit Maters

Key oudit matters are those matters that, in eur professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
aur oudit of the financial statements as @ whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, ond we do not
provide a separate apinion on these matters.

Key Audil Malters - Our Audit Approach and Responses
1. Interest Recognition : _ -
Inferest Income of the bank has o be recaginsed | Our audit approach regarding verification
on accrual besis and in line with Interest Income | of process of interest recognition included:

Recognition Guidelines 2019 issued by HNRE. . Obtaining clear understanding of

However, in case of bod loons and odvances the process of occrual of inferest
{overdue for more thon 12 months], this guidalines | Incame on loan ond advances n the
requires cessation of interest recognition on accrual core banking software of the bank.

baosis. TH! _ requires  careful observation ond :
caleylation for interest recognition, hence we have | b Test check of interest recagnition with
considered it os key audit matter. manual computation.

2. Impairment of Loan and Advances:
As per NRB Directive 4 read with carve out lsived Dutl’r_
by ASE, bonk shall measure impairment loss m*-ﬁ',.-

it approach regarding verification
wiiaifoent of loon ond advances

loans and odvances at the higher of : { fhchdsﬂ: &
' S Vi F =
!/"‘ \ g £ |
AW, g/
R R s \_.;4

e L, AT
v, Ehzpert®

93 3if a1ffes ufddget | R4



&' Salapa Bikas Bank Limited

Kay Audit Matters
a. Amount derived as per norms prescribed by
Mepal Rastra Bonk for loan lass provision; and

b. Amount determined s per para 63 of MAS 39
adopting Incurred Loss Model

As per the norms prescribed by MRB provision,
provision on loan and advonces sholl be created
bosed on overdue states as well as villization
status of the facility, security status, borrower's
whereabouts etc,

As per NAS 39 read with NFRS 9, impairment of
loan and odvances should be made on collective
as well of individual basis. For Individually
significant loan and  advances,  individuol
impairment is mecsevred as the difference
between the assets corrying emount and present
volue of estimated future cash flows.

For homogeneous groups of loans and odvances |
that are not individuolly significant, collective |
impairment is done. Under collective impalrment,
loss I determined after taking into account the |
historical loss experience in portfolios of similar
credit risk and management judgement based on
experience as to whether eurrent economic ond
credit conditions are such that the actual level of
inherent losses ot the reporting date is likely to be
greater or less than that suggested by historical
experiences.

In view of complexity in loan loss provision based
on MRE directive and MAS 39, we hove considered
it as key audit matter for our audi.

3. Share Application Money sk
In order to meet the capital requirements set forth |
by Nepal Restra Bank, bank has made call for |
share application money from
shareholders.
Ou of total collected amount of Rs.
 524791,900.00/- , Rs, 322,000,000/ hos been 4
capltalized os thare capital as on Ashad 17, 2080
and the remaining omount of Rs. 202,791,900/~ s |
in the process of being returned to the depositers |
after alloting shares to depositers on prorata
bosis. As of the end of Ashod 2081, Rs.
8877,214.62 is yet to be refunded fo the |
prospective shareholders.

3R | 93 3k anffes ufddcor

Qur Audit Approach and Responses

Q.

Review of the overdue status of loons
and odvonces by cbtaining data
from the system ond verified
manually.

Sample credit files were reviewed
omong other things from the
prespective of utilization of loans
and odvances for the intended
purpose by way of scruting of
financial statements, account
movement, account furmnoaver et

Collateral Valvation of the security
along with expected future cash flow
has been reviewed in somple basls
for individually significant leans and
advances.

In cose of homogenous loons, we
assessed the probability of default
and loss for given default calculated
based on the historical  loss
experiences.

Our awdit approach regarding the collection

of ameunt from potential shareholders and
the potential | ollotment included:

Verification of Amount callected

from potential shareholders on

sample basis.

b, Verification of share allotment made

{4

to the potential shareholders on pro-
rata basis.

Verificction of entries made in books
of accounts and share ragister.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Stalements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
gecordance with Mepal Financial Reporting Standards, end for such intemnal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financlal statements, management is responsible for assessing the bank’s ability to
continue as o going concern, disclosing, as applicoble, motters related to geing concern and using the
going concem basis of occounting unless management either intends to liquidate the bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altemnative but to do so.

These charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the bank’s financial reperting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasoncble assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from materiel misstatements, whether due to froud or error, ond to Bive an ouditor's report
thet includes our opinion. Reasanable assurance s o high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee thal
an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect @ material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered maoterial if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasoncbly be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the baosks of these financial statements.

As port of an oudit In accordance with NSAs, we exerche professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify end assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design ond perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, ond obtaln audit
svidences that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting @ material misstatement resulting from froud Is higher than for one resulting from error,
as froud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design oudit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the bank's internal control.

s Evalucte the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the recscnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the oppropriateness of management's use of the geing concem basis of accounting
and, based on the oudit evidences obtained, whether o material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions thot may cast significont doubt on the bank's ability to continue os a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertalinty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditer's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are Inodequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the cudit evidences
obtained up to the date of our cuditor's report. However, future events or conditions may couse

the bank to cease to continue as a golng concem.
* Evoluate the overall presentation, structure, anfel ¢z t of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financiol ing the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the und fi‘!__an s and events in a manner that achleves

fair presentation. 1 Ao
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:v‘lup'nmn;m‘;n:ﬂa w:!hthlhos:d charged with govemaonce regording, ameong other motters, the plonned
cope an ng of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signifi
internal control that we identify during our audit. o 5. Gy Signieans Coicender s

We also provide those nhurged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
mt;ﬂers l:;ul moy reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In cur opinion, proper books of account o3 required
by law have been kept by the bank in so for as it appears frem our examination of those books of
account of the bank. In our opinion the statement of financial pesition, statement of profit or loss,
statement of ether comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity & statement of cash flows for
the period then ended ond o summary of significont cccounting policies and other explanotary notes
have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2063 ond are in
agreement with the books of accounts maintgined by the bank. In our opinion end to tho best of
information and according to the explanation given fo us and from the exomination of the books of
accounts of the bank, we have not come across ony case where the board of directors or any employee
of the bank have octed contrary to legol provisions relating to @ccounts, or committed any
misappropriation or coused any loss or damoge to the bank.

In our opinion, so far os oppeared from our examination of the books, the bank has maintained
adequate capltal banks and adequate provision for possible impalment of assets in accordance with
the directives lssved by Mepal Rastra Bank. However, the paid up copital requirement set forth by MEB

has not been met with.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the explanation given fo us and from the examination
of the books of accounts of the bank, we hove not come across any cose where the board of directors
or any employee of the bank have acted contrary o legal provisions relating to cccounts, or committed
any misappropriation or coused any loss or damage to the bank or fts property and viclated any
directives of Mepal Rastra Bank or acted in o monner to jeopordize the interest and security of the
bank, its depesitors and it's investors.

For D. G. B. A. Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA, Dan Bahadur
Partner

Date: 2081.10.02

Ploce: Kathmondu, Mepal

UDIN: 2501 15CAQ12538m3Gd
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Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

Statement of Financial Position
As at Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Particulars Note As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 4.1 345,987,211 513,445,405
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 - -
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - -
Loans and advances to B/FIs 4.6 - -
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 951,965,286 804,018,559
Investment securities 4.8 93,276,435 -
Current tax assets 4.9 3,710,204 5,139,678
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10 - -
Investment in associates 4.11 - -
Investment property 4.12 - -
Property and Equipment 4.13 31,408,356 31,491,471
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14 1,943,526 1,131,364
Deferred Tax Assets 4.15 6,377,808 5,140,612
Other assets 4.16 8,280,332 6,006,284
Total Assets 1,442,949,157 1,366,373,373
Particulars Note As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17 156,739,050 146,587,310
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 - -
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.19 - -
Deposits from customers 4.20 885,580,620 786,615,849
Borrowings 4.21 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - -
Provisions 4.22 - 164,754
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.15 - -
Other liabilities 4.23 46,439,007 77,717,745
Debt securities issued 4.24 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total liabilities 1,088,758,677 1,011,085,658
Equity

Share Capital 4.26 350,000,000 350,000,000
Share Premium - -
Retained Earnings (16,220,489) (11,687,732)
Reserves 4.27 20,410,968 16,975,447
Total equity attributable to equity holders 354,190,479 355,287,715
Non-controlling interest - -
Total Equity 354,190,479 355,287,715
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,442,949,157 1,366,373,373
Contingent Liabilities and commitment 4.28 15,674,746 15,029,519
Net Assets Value Per share 101.20 101.51

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For D.G.B.A. Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. Dan Bahadur Galami
Partner

Date:
Place: Kathmandu Nepal

Tanka Rai
Chairman

Harindra Prasad Rai
Director

Lata K.C
Independent Director

Chandra Bahadur Khadka
Director

Sharan Kumar Rai
Director

Lab Kumar Rai
Director

Yogendra Pun
Chief Executive Officer
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Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2080 and ending on Ashad 31, 2081

Figures in NPR
Particulars Note Year Ended Year Ended
Ashad 31, 2081 Ashad 31, 2080
Interest income 4.29 137,706,428 127,174,234
Interest expense 4.30 (65,273,886) (66,730,337)
Net interest income 72,432,542 60,443,897
Fees and commission income 4.31 5,029,981 5,058,037
Fees and commission expense 4.32 - -
Net fee and commission income 5,029,981 5,058,037
Net interest and commission income 77,462,523 65,501,934
Net trading income 4.33 - -
Other operating income 4.34 615,935 436,623
Total operating income 78,078,458 65,938,557
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.35 3,403,245 212,712
Net operating income 74,675,214 65,725,845
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 4.36 (52,995,816) (49,526,483)
Other Operating expenses 4.37 (12,337,711) (12,040,611)
Depreciation and Amortization 4.38 (8,534,525) (8,124,377)
Operating Profit 807,161 (3,965,626)
Non operating Income 4.39 - -
Non operating expense 4.40 - -
Profit before income tax 807,161 (3,965,626)
Income tax expense 441 494,550 (729,336)
Current Tax Expense 1,422,749 592,541
Deferred Tax Expense (Income) (928,198) (1,321,877)
Profit for the period 312,610 (3,236,290)
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 312,610 (3,236,290)
Non-controlling interests - -
Profit for the period 312,610 (3,236,290)

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS 0.09 (0.92)
Diluted EPS 0.09 (0.92)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For D.G.B.A. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Tanka Rai

Chairman Director

CA. Dan Bahadur Galami
Partner

Harindra Prasad Rai
Director

Date: Lata K.C
Place: Kathmandu Nepal Independent Director
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Chandra Bahadur Khadka

Sharan Kumar Rai
Director

Lab Kumar Rai
Director

Yogendra Pun

Chief Executive Officer
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’\ Salapa Bikas Bank Limited

Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

As per NRB Regulation

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss
Appropriation

a. General Reserve

b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund

c. Capital redemption reserve

d. Corporate social responsibility fund

e. Employees training fund

f. Other

Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment

Regulatory Adjustments:
a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received(+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts(-)/reversal(+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment(-)/reversal(+)

d. Short provision for possible losses on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal(+)

e. Deferred Tax Assets recognized(-)/reversal(+)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+)
h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+)
i. Other (+/-)
Total requlatory adjustments
Net Profit for the Year End 2081 available for distribution

Opening Retained Earning
Adjustment (+/-)
Distribution
Bonus Share Issued
Cash Dividend Issued
Total Distributable Profit or (Loss) as on End Date
Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per Share

30 |QS3?[_OTI‘§T:5W

As at Ashad 31, 2080

312,610 (3,236,290)
(62,522) -
(3,126) -
(607,438) (431,733)
(360,475) (3,668,023)
(1,212,401) 1,980,391
(1,237,195) (1,629,285)
(1,036,545) (717,286)
(3,486,142) (366,180)
(3,846,617) (4,034,203
(11,687,732) (3,785,318)
(686,140) (3.868,211)
(16,220,489) (11,687,732)
(4.63) (3.34)
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Salapa Bikas Bank Limited ’\

Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

1. Reporting Entity

Salapa Development Bank Limited (referred as 'the Development Bank’, the Company' or 'the Bank') is a public company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 2063 and licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank to conduct banking transaction as a “B” Class Financial Institution
under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073. The Development Bank has its Corporate Office at Diktel, Khotang. The Development
Bank received the license to commence banking operations. The Development Bank’s equity shares hasnot been listed in Nepal Stock
Exchange. The objective of the Development Bank is to uplift the economic status of Nepal by investing in different economic sectors
under economic liberalization policy, understanding diverse customer needs and providing broad mix of financial services to business and
individuals.

The authorized capital of the company is Rupees 800,000,000/-, the issued capital is 52,23,88,000/- and the paid-up capital is
350,000,000/-. 100 per cent of the paid-up capital is held by the promoters. The shares of the Company are not listed at Nepal Stock
Exchange Limited (NEPSE). The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility of preparation of financial statements of the
Bank.The approved financial statements have been recommended for approval by the shareholders in the annual general meeting of the
Bank.

1.1 Subsidiaries
The bank has no wholly owned or partially owned subsidiaries company during the financial year 2080/81.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except the Cash Flow information, which is
prepared on a cash basis, using the direct method. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and
Notes to Financial Statement of the Bank. The accounting policies are consistently applied to all the years presented, except for the
changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically.

2.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) and as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and as per the provisions of Bank and Financial Institutions Act,2073 in the format issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives.

2.1.1 Use of Carve-out

ICAN has provided carve out on specific areas for alternative treatment of the items of financial statements required as per NFRS. Based
on such, the bank has used following carve out for preparation and presentation of financial statements in line with NFRS.

a) Impairment Loss on Loan and Advances

As per para 63 of NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, impairment loss is calculated on incurred loss model.
However, the carve out has allowed to recognise loan loss provision at higher of loss calculated as per para 63 or the same as per NRB
Directives No. 02/076. Accordingly , the bank has used this carve out and recognised impairment loss as per NRB directive as the same
was higher in comparision to impairment loss calculated as per NAS 39 .

Financial Year F.Y 2080/81 F.Y 2079/80
Provision as per NRB Directive 29,835,489 26,432,244
Provision as per NFRS 8,489,811 6,924,157
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’\ Salapa Bikas Bank Limited

Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

b) Effective Interest Rate

As per the definition of effective interest rate (EIR) as per para 9 of NAS 39, all the initial points paid or received is required to be
considered for calculation of EIR and the same EIR is used to calculate interest on loans and advances. As per the carve out, if
calculation of EIR is impracticable or immaterial, then such could be ignored.The bank has used the carve out and has not considered
initial points paid or received on loans to be part of EIR, rather such amount has been accounted as income on accrual basis.

c) Interest income on amortized loan after impairment recognition

As per para AG63 of NAS 39, Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The carve out provides that interest income can be calculated on gross carrying amount of
loan.The bank has used the stated carve out in preparing the financial statements.

3. Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements
Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid-July) of any year to the last day of Ashadh (mid-July) of the next year as
per Nepalese calendar.

Particulars Nepaleses Calander English Calandar

Current Year F.Y 2080/81 F.Y 2023/24

Previous Year F.Y 2079/80 F.Y 2022/23

Reporting Period gg;""a” 1, 2080 to Ashad 31, 3 17 5023 to July 15, 2024

The financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirement of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and were approved by the
board of directors on its 331st board meeting dated 2081/09/29

23 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Currency (NPR) (rounded to the nearest Rupee unless otherwise stated), which is
the company’s functional currency. The Development Bank determines the functional currency and items included in the financial
statements are measured using that functional currency.

2.4 Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the Development Bank's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Information about assumptions and estimation that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial
year are:

Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations.

Provisions, commitments and contingencies.

Determination of net realizable value.

Determination of useful life of the property, plants and equipment.

Assessment of the Development Bank’s ability to continue as going concern.
Determination of fair value of financial instruments; and property and equipment.
Impairment of financial and non-financial assets.

Assessment of current as well as deferred tax.
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2.5 Changes in accounting policies

The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial statements except for new or
revised statements and interpretations implemented during the year. The nature and effect of new standards and interpretations are
discussed in note that follows.

2.6. New Reporting standards issued but not effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures have been applied. NFRS 9 has been complied for the classification of
Financial Instruments. Few carve-outs on applicable Accounting Standards as provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Nepal have been used by the Bank, the quantitative and qualitative impact of the same have been disclosed in detail in Notes to the
Accounts. Further, NAS 17 Leases has not been incorporated in this financial statement regarding operating lease since the effect of the
same was considered not material by the management. Further, a number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards
and interpretations have been issued by International Accounting Standard Board after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying
effective dates. Those become applicable when Accounting Standard Board Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after the
pronouncements of IFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

2.7. Discounting
Non- current assets and liabilities are discounted where discounting is material. Interest income and expenses have been recognized on
unwinding of financial assets and liabilities respectively.

2.8. Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or function are
presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Nepal Accounting Standard — NAS 1 on ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’. Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the understandability and
comparability of Financial Statements of the bank. Understandability of the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring
material information with immaterial information or by aggregating material items that have different natures or functions.

2.9. Going Concern

The Board has made an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and satisfied that it has the resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the
Financial Statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

2.10. Prior Period Errors

Prior Period Errors are omissions or misstatements in an entity’s financial statements. Such omissions may relate to one or more prior
periods. Correction of an error is done by calculating the cumulative effect of the change on the financial statements of the period as if
new method or estimate had always been used for all the affected prior years’ financial statements. Sometimes such changes may not
be practicable. In such cases, it is applied to the latest period possible by making corresponding adjustment to the opening balance of
the period.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied by the Development Bank in the preparation of these financial statements are presented
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless stated otherwise.

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material items in the statement of financial
position:

Investment property is measured at fair value.

Liabilities for cash-settled, share-based-payment arrangements are measured at fair value.

Available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value.

Investments held-for-trade is measured at fair value.

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.

Impairment of asset is measured at fair value and related disposal cost.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the
Company. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimates are revised and in the
future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in notes that follow.

Distinction of Current and Non-Current

Assets

All the assets except the property, plant and equipment’s and deferred tax assets are classified as current assets unless specific
additional disclosure is made in the notes.

Liabilities

All the liabilities except the defined benefit plan obligations are classified as current liabilities unless specific additional disclosure is
made in the notes.

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NFRS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is presented separately in the
financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately unless they are material.

3.2 Basis of Cosolidation

The Development Bank does not have any subsidiaries or special purpose entities over which it exercises control. Hence, only
standalone financial statement is prepared.

3.3 Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at vault and agency bank account balances, unrestricted balances with NRB, highly liquid
financial assets with original maturity of 3 months from the date of its acquisition and are readily convertible to cash, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and Cash equivalent are measured at amortized cost in the statement of
financial position.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method’ in accordance with NAS 07- Statement of Cash Flows.
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3.4 Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities

Recognition

The Development Bank initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when, and only
when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Development Bank initially recognize loans and
advances, deposits; and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are originated which is the date that the
Development Bank becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds,
debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at
which the Development Bank commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets
are recognized on trade date.

Classification
i.  Financial Assets
The Development Bank classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the

Development Bank’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Development Bank classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

b)  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2. Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial assets measured at fair value are
further classified into two categories as below:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or
loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss.

b)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Development Bank makes an
irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive income
are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair
value and changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

ii.  Financial Liabilities

The Development Bank classifies the financial liabilities as follows:

a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are designated at fair value

through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement
of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss.

b)  Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently measured at amortized
cost using effective interest method.
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Measurement

Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by instrument basis) to present the
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not
permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The
cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company’s right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the ‘Other operating income’ line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition,
debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on

financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the

economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of
the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9 permits the entire combined contract to
be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with NFRS 9

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability
and is included in the ‘Other operating income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately
in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in
the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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De-recognition
i. Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Development Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Development Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained by the Development Bank is
recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset, and the sum of

(i) The consideration received and
(ii) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss.

The Development Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement of Financial Position, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all
risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers of assets with retention of all or
substantially all risks and rewards include, for example repurchase transactions.

ii. Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Development Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an on-going basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Development Bank uses
valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen
valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are not based on observable market
data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e. the fair value of
the consideration given or received. If the Development Bank determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (Level
01 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets (Level 02 valuation), then the financial
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument
but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out. In case the fair
value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation), the difference between
the transaction price and fair value is recognized in profit or loss immediately.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Development Bank assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss
event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer, default or
delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Development Bank on terms that the Development Bank would
not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a
security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or
issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity
security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Development Bank considers to restructure loans rather than take possession of
collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been
renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no
longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using
the loan’s original EIR.
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Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Development Bank considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and investment securities measured at amortized
cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Development Bank first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant and that are not individually significant are assessed on
collectively.

If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

All individually significant loans and advances; and investment securities measured at amortized cost found not to be specifically
impaired and those that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and
advances with similar risk characteristics.

All individually significant loans and advances and investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and
advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by
grouping together loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios is based on the judgments in past experience of portfolio behaviour. In assessing
collective impairment, the Development Bank uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the
amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that
the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing
of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost are calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realized or has been transferred to the Development Bank. If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If loan written off is later recovered, the
recovery is recognized in the ‘Other operating income’.

Impairment of investment in equity instrument classified as fair value though other comprehensive income

Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its
cost. Impairment losses are recognized by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The
cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal
repayment and the current fair value, less any impairment loss recognized previously in profit or loss.

3.5 Trading Assets

Interest income on all trading assets are considered to be incidental to the Development Bank’s trading operations and are presented
together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Development Bank’s trading operations and are
presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.
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3.6 Derivative Assets & Derivative Liabilities

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumulative change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised in the
income statement in Net trading income. Meanwhile, the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the
risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item in the statement of financial position and is also recognised
in the income statement in Net trading income.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the hedge relationship is discontinued prospectively. For hedged items recorded at amortised cost, the difference
between the carrying value of the hedged item on termination and the face value is amortised over the remaining term of the original
hedge using the recalculated EIR method. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value adjustment is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

3.7 Property & Equipment
a) Recognition & Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the
Development Bank and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-constructed assets includes followings:

Cost of materials and direct labour;
Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use; and
Capitalized borrowing cost

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. Neither class
of the property and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure will flow to the entity.
On-going repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed as incurred.

Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

b) Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under capital work in progress account (CWIP). At the point when an
asset is capable of operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences. Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or
remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of
dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a
corresponding liability is recognized.

a3 3if s ufddeet | ¥3



« Salapa Bikas Bank Limited

Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

c) Depreciation
Property and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use on property on written down value method over

estimated useful lives as determined by the Management. Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated.
Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment for current year and comparative periods are as follows:

Particulars Useful Life As per IT Act 2058
Computer and Accessories 5 Years 25%
Office Equipment 7 Years 15%
Vehicle 7 Years 20%
Furniture Fixture Wood Office 8 Years 25%
Machinery 8 Years 15%
Furniture Fixture Metal Office 10 Years 25%
Lease Hold Assets 10 Years 10 years

For assets purchased/sold during the year, depreciation is provided up to the date of use on pro-rata basis.

3.8 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level.
Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis.

The intangible asset with finite useful lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognised as intangible assets based on materiality, accounting prudence and
significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a period longer than one year.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of intangible assets for current year and comparative periods are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life

Computer Software 5 Years

The capitalized value of Software Purchase and installation costs are amortized over a maximum 5 years’ period or within the
ownership period.
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3.9 Investment Property

Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for
sale in ordinary course of business and owner occupied property. The Development Bank holds investment property that has been
acquired through the enforcement of security over the loan and advances.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing
part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred. If the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of
day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which they arise. Investment property which initially measured at cost
and subsequently at Cost Model. Accordingly, such properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss if any.

Fair values are evaluated annually by an accredited external, independent valuer.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income staOtement in the year of retirement or disposal.

3.10 Income Tax

The Company is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income Taxes have been calculated as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 2058.

Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the

rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is

dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax law carry-
forwards become deductible. The company considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable

income making this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the near
term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent it relates to items directly recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax assets and
liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be payable or recoverable in respect of previous periods.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and that are expected
to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and reversed if it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realised. The measurement of
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

i. Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

ii. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

3.11 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Development Bank deposits consist of money placed into the Development Bank by its customers. These deposits are made to
deposit accounts such as fixed deposit accounts, savings accounts, margin deposit accounts, call deposit accounts and current
accounts. Details and further disclosures about deposits have been explained in Note that follows.

3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, when it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and when the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the
effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable
is recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:

' a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or

* present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or

the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, foreign exchange income, cards income, disposal income etc. Revenue
is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Development Bank and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is not probable. The bases of
incomes recognition are as below:
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Interest income

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using banks normal interest rate which is very close to effective interest rate as per
effective interest rate method. Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and
receipts through the expected life of financial asset or liability to the carrying amount of the asset or liability. The calculation of
effective interest rate includes all transactions cost and fee and points paid or received that are integral part of the effective interest.
The transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets.

Interest income presented in statement of comprehensive income includes:

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost using banks normal interest rate which is very close to effective
interest rate calculated as per effective interest rate method. These financial assets include loans and advances including staff loans,
investment in government securities, investment in corporate bonds, investment in NRB Bond and deposit instruments, reverse
repos, inter banking lending etc.

* Interest on investment securities measured at fair value, calculated on effective interest rate.

* Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over the period of discounting on
accrual basis using effective interest rate.

Interest income on all trading assets are considered to be incidental to the Development Bank's trading operations and are presented
together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

However, interest accrual is suspended and is not recognized as Interest income in the Statement of Profit or Loss where the loan is
categorized as Bad (Loss) irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral. The Bank has not recognised NPR 3,637,935.10/- as
interest income in its Statement of Profit or Loss for FY 2079-80.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included in measurement of
effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fee, service charges, syndication fee, forex
transaction commission, commission of issue of letter of credit and guarantee are recognized as the related services are performed.
When the loan commitment is not utilized to the extent of approved limit, the related commitment fees are recognized on undrawn
amount on straight line basis over the period of commitment.

Dividend income

Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Dividend income are
presented in net trading income, net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue
based on the underlying classification of the equity instruments.

Net trading income

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value and related interest income or expense
and dividends for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading. This includes any ineffectiveness recorded in hedging
transactions.

Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by management upon initial
recognition. Management may only designate an instrument at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the
following criteria are met, and designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

* The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis.

* The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

* The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, which significantly modify the cash flows that would
otherwise be required by the contract.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in Net gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned or incurred is accrued in Interest income or Interest expense,
respectively, using the effective interest rate (EIR), while dividend income is recorded in other operating income when the right to
the payment has been established.
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3.14 Interest expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective interest rate method.
Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Development Bank’s trading operations and are
presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

3.15 Employees Benefits
a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus Act to pay the amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the reporting period):

' wages, salaries and social security contributions;
* paid annual leave and paid sick leave;

- profit-sharing and bonuses; and

* non-monetary benefits

b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan

Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays a fixed contribution to a separate entity
and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognized as personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related service are rendered by employees. Pre-paid
contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund or reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to
a defined contribution plan being due for more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee render the service
are discounted at their present value. The following are the defined contribution plan provided by the Development Bank to its
employees:

a) Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with law, all employees of the Development Bank are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan in which both the employee and the Development Bank contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently,
10% of the basic salary plus grades). Development Bank does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other than
its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Development Bank’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the
reporting date on high quality corporate bonds, that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Development Bank's
obligation and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The calculation of obligation is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using projected unit credit method.

The Development Bank recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in other
comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefits plans in employee benefit are expensed in profit or loss.
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The following are the defined benefit plans provided by the Development Bank to its employees:

a) Gratuity

Development Bank provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms of Employee Service Byelaws of the
Development Bank. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment
or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each completed years of service.

b) Leave Salary

The employees of the Development Bank are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed/ unutilized leave subject to a
maximum limit. The employees can encash unavailed/ unutilized leave partially in terms of Employee Service Byelaws of the
Development Bank. The Development Bank accounts for the liability for entire accumulated outstanding leave balance on accrual
basis as per Employee Service Byelaws of the Development Bank.

c) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Development Bank is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility
of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to employees as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized if the Development Bank has made an offer for voluntary redundancy, it is probable
that the offer will be accepted and the number of acceptance can be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12
months after the reporting date, they are discounted to their present value.

3.16 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of assets, but not
necessarily legal title, are classified as finance lease. When Bank is the lessor under finance lease, the amounts due under the leases,
after deduction of unearned interest income, are included in ‘Loans to & receivables from other customers’, as appropriate. Interest
income receivable is recognized in ‘Net interest income’ over the periods of the leases so as to give a constant rate of return on the
net investment in the leases.

When Bank is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalized and included in ‘Property and equipment’ and the
corresponding liability to the lesser is included in ‘Other liabilities’.

At the commencement date of lease, the Bank shall recognize Right of Use asset. The cost of Right of Use asset shall comprise the
amount of initial measurement of lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received and any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. Right of Use Assets shall be measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment and adjusted for any re measurement of the lease liability. The Bank shall depreciate
the Right of Use Asset from the commencement date to the end of useful life of the underlying assets on the straight line basis. At
the commencement date, the Bank shall measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. The lease payment shall include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments, amounts
expected to be payable by the Bank under residual value guarantee., the exercise price of a purchase option if the Bank is reasonably
certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease.

The details of Right to use asset and Lease Liability are stated below:

Particulars Right of Use Asset Lease Liability
Opening Balance 10,721,524.00 13,151,596.78
Addition During The year 1,606,695.20 1,606,695.20
Interest Cost - 1,512,220.00
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset (2,412,363.00)

Lease Payment in Accrual basis - (3,157,383.00)
Closing Balance 9,915,856.20 13,113,128.98 |

The Right to Use Assets has been shown in Buildings in schedule 4.13 Property and Equipment and the Lease Liability in schedule
4.23 Other Liabilities under Other Liability heading.
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3.17 Foreign Currency Translation

The items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the functional currency of the Company.

3.18 Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitment

The Development Bank makes available to its customers guarantees that may require that the Development Bank makes payments
on their behalf and enters into commitments to extend credit lines to secure their liquidity needs. Letters of credit and guarantees
(including standby letters of credit) commit the Development Bank to make payments on behalf of customers in the event of a
specific act, generally related to the import or export of goods. Such commitments expose the Development Bank to similar risks to
loans and are mitigated by the same control processes and policies.

3.19 Share Capital and Reserves

The Development Bank classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities in accordance with the substance
with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in total assets of an entity after deducting all its
liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the Development Bank and distributions thereon are presented in statement of
changes in equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of an equity instruments are deducted from the initial measurement of the equity
instruments.

3.20 Earnings per Share including Diluted

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges
to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number
of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could
have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive
equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of
the completion of these financial statements which would require the restatement of earnings per share.

3.21 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Development Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to transactions with any of the Development Bank’s other
components, whose operating results are reviewed by the management to make decision about resource allocation to each segment
and assess its performance. Since the Chief Operating Decision Maker monitors the activities of the Development Bank as a whole,
the Development Bank has classified its business segment as banking, remittance and other segments.
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Note No. 4.1

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Cash in hand 28,179,636 43,984,917
Balance with B/Fis 89,310,551 47,363,865
Money at call and short notice 228,497,024 422,096,623
Other - -
Total 345,987,211 513,445,405

*Balance with BFIs includes the balance kept in Commercial Bank (Prabhu Bank) for the purpose of statutory liquidity reserve

amounting to NPR.44,000,000.00 at Ashadh 31, 2081.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.2

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Statutory Balances with NRB
Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement
Other deposit and receivable from NRB

Total

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No.4.3

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Placements with domestic B/FIs
Placement with foreign B/FIs
Less: Allowances for Impairment

Total

Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.4

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Held for risk management

Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Total
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Other Trading Assets

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.5

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Treasury Bills
Government Bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged
Non-pledged

Loans and advances to BF/Is

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.6

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Loans to microfinance institutions
Other
Less: Allowances for Impairment

Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.6.1

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Balance at 1 Shrawan
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversals
Amount written off

Balance at Asadh end
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Loans and advances to customers

Note No.4.7

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Loans and advances measured at amortized cost 981,800,774 830,450,803
Less:

Impairment allowances (29,835,489) (26,432,244)
Collective Allowances 11,609,940 11,595,654
Individual Allowances 18,225,549 14,836,590

Net amount 951,965,286 804,018,559

Loans and advances measured at FVTPL - -

Total 951,965,286 804,018,559

Analysis of Loans and advances- By Product Note 4.7.1

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Product

Term Loans 262,639,664 233,639,079
Overdraft 143,761,690 137,841,990
Trust receipt/Import loans - -
Demand and other working capital Loans -
Personal residential loans -
Real estate loans -
Margin lending loans -
Hire purchase loans 3,025,850 2,877,830
Deprived sector loans 166,481,200 149,928,579
Bills purchased -
Staff loans 179,976,078 131,443,264
Others 220,372,890 171,101,106
Sub Total 976,257,373 826,831,849
Interest receivable 5,543,402 3,618,954
Grand Total 981,800,774 830,450,803
Analysis of Loans and advances- By Currency Note No. 4.7.2

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japanese yen
Chinese yen

Other

981,800,774

830,450,803

Total

981,800,774

830,450,803
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Analysis of Loans and advances- By Collateral

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.7.3

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Secured

Movable/immovable assets 744,263,786
Gold and silver 55,097,301
Guarantee of domestic B/Fis -
Government Guarantee -
Guarantee of International Rated bank -
Collateral of export document -
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt 2,141,922
Collateral of Government securities -
Counter Guarantee -
Personal Guarantee -
Other collateral (incl. Staff Loans) 180,297,766

663,873,843
24,822,536

7,957,750

133,796,675

Subtotal 981,800,774

830,450,803

Unsecured

Grand Total 981,800,774

830,450,803
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Movement of Loan Loss Provision

Note No. 4.7.4

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Specific allowance for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 14,836,590 16,572,014

Impairment loss for the year

Charge for the year 3,388,959 (1,735,424)
Recoveries/reversal during the year

Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other Movement

Balance at Asadh end 18,225,549 14,836,590

Collective allowance for Impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 11,595,654 9,647,518

Impairment loss for the year

Charge/(reversal) for the year 14,286 1,948,136

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other movement

Balance at Asadh end 11,609,940 11,595,654

Total as on Ashad end 29,835,489 26,432,244

B. IMPAIRMENT AS PER NAS 39

Individual Impairment
Collective Impairment
Total Impairment as per NAS 39
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As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

3,553,710 3,635,725
4,936,101 3,288,432
8,489,811 6,924,157
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Investment securities

Note No. 4.8

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 69,659,600 -
Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI 23,616,835 -
Less Provision - -
Total 93,276,435 -

Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.8.1

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

20,000,000
49,659,600

Total

69,659,600

Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.8.2

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Equity instrument

Quoted equity instrument 23,616,835 -
Unquoted equity instrument - -
Total 23,616,835 -
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For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Current Tax Assets

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.9

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Current tax assets

Current year income tax assets 5,132,952 5,732,219
Tax assets of prior periods

Sub-total 5,132,952 5,732,219
Current tax Liabilities

Current year income tax liabilities 1,422,749 592,541
Tax Liabilities of prior periods - -
Sub-total 1,422,749 592,541
Total 3,710,204 5,139,678

Investment in Subsidiaries

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.10

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Total Investment
Less: Impairment allowances

Net carrying amount

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.10.1

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Shares of Rs... each

Total
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’\ Salapa Bikas Bank Limited

Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Particulars

Note No. 4.10.2

As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080

Shares of Rs... each

Total

Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank

Particulars

Note No. 4.10.3

Percentage of Ownership held by the Bank
As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080

Non controlling Interest of the subsidiaries

Particulars

Note No. 4.10.4

As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080

Equity Interest held by NCI(%)

Profit/(Loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balances of NCIs as on Asadh end
Dividend paid to NCI

Total
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Salapa Bikas Bank Limited ’\

Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Investment in Associates

Note No. 4.11

The Bank has no any associates. Thus, it does not prepare consolidated financial statement and accordingly, equity method
of accounting is not used as per Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS 28) on — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures.

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Investment in Quoted Associates
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Total Investment

Less: Impairment allowances

Net carrying amount

Investment in Quoted Associates

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.11.1

As at Ashad 31, 2080

...... Shares of Rs....... Each

Total

Investment in Unquoted Associates

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.11.2

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Information relating to associates of the Bank

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.11.3

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Equity value of Associates

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.11.4

As at Ashad 31, 2080
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’\ Salapa Bikas Bank Limited

Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Investment Properties Note No. 4.12

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Investment Properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Shrawan 1 - -
Addition/Disposal during the year - -
Net changes in fair value during the year - -
Adjustment/Transfer - -
Net Amount - -

Investment Properties measured at cost

Balance as on Shrawan 1 - -
Addition/Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Transfer - -
Accumulated impairment loss - -
Net Amount - -
Total - -

*Bank doesnot hold any kind of non-banking assets which is to be shown as Investment Properties as per Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards as on the reporting date.
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Salapa Bikas Bank Limited ’\

Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Other Assets

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note No. 4.16

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Assets held for sale
Other Non-Banking Assets
Bills Receivable

3,456,125

1,998,805

Accounts receivable
Accrued income 100,154 -
Prepayments and deposits 2,098,738 439,875
Income tax deposit - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 1,052,176 2,090,872
Other
Stationary Stock 1,572,817 1,240,085
Others 321 236,647
Total 8,280,332 6,006,284
Due to Bank and financial institutions Note. 4.17

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Money market deposits
Interbank borrowing

156,739,050

146,587,310

Other deposits from BFIs

Settlement and clearing accounts - -
Total 156,739,050 146,587,310
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank Note. 4.18

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Refinance from NRB

Standing liquidity facility

Lender of last report facility from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreement
Other payable to NRB

Total

Derivative financial instruments

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note. 4.19

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Held for trading

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Total
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’\ Salapa Bikas Bank Limited

Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Deposits from Customers

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note. 4.20

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Institutions Customers:
Term deposits
Call Deposits
Current Deposits
Other

Sub total:

Individual Customers:
Term deposits

18,980,820 22,936,230
6,008,370 2,691,510
8,471,370 4,885,490

378,240 509,383
33,838,800 31,022,613

390,016,300

264,392,450

Saving Deposits 446,122,170 484,427,770

Current Deposits 15,541,930 6,770,486

Other 61,420 2,530
Sub total: 851,741,820 755,593,236
Total 885,580,620 786,615,849
Currency wise analysis of deposits from customers Note. 4.20.1

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United state dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japanese yen
Chinese Yuan
Other

885,580,620

786,615,849

Total

885,580,620

786,615,849

Borrowing

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note. 4.21

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Domestic Borrowing:

Nepal Government

Other institution

Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing:

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Bank

Other institutions

Sub total

Total
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Salapa Bikas Bank Limited ’\

Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Provisions

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note. 4.22

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Onerous contract

Other - 164,754
Total - 164,754
Movement in provision Note. 4.22.1

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Balance at Shrawan 1st
Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year*
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount

164,754

(164,754)

164,754

Balance at Ashadh End

164,754

Other liabilities

Note. 4.23

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 8,595,495 5,549,545
Liability for long-service leave 6,247,990 5,974,219
Short-term employee benefits - -
Bills payable - -
Creditors and Accruals 13,377,773 48,231,280
Interest payable on deposit - -
Interest payable on borrowing - -
Liabilities on deferred grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend - -
Liabilities under finance lease - -
Employee bonus payable 89,684 2,386,377
Other

Lease Liability under NFRS 16 13,113,129 13,151,597

TDS payables 1,014,395 1,086,668

Others 4,000,541 1,338,060
Total 46,439,007 77,717,745

*Creditors and Accruals in Ashad End 2081 includes Rs.8,877,214.62/- which pertains to excess amount collected as share
application money and shall be refunded to the respective individual to whom share has not been alloted. Total amount
collected as share application money amounts to 524,791,900/-. Out of this total collected amount, Amount Rs. 322,000,000/,
has been transferred to Share capital and remaining amount has been processed for refunding to respective individual.
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’\ Salapa Bikas Bank Limited

Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Defined benefit obligation Note. 4.23.1

The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Present value of unfunded obligations 8,595,495 5,549,546
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations 8,595,495 5,549,546
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of net obligations 8,595,495 5,549,546
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligation 8,595,495 5,549,546
Plan Assets Note. 4.23.2
Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080

Equity securities - N
Government bonds - -

Bank deposits - -
Other - -
Total - -
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations Note. 4.23.3
Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Defined benefit obligation at shrawan 1st 5,549,546 3,416,076
Actuarial (Gains) / losses 1,480,779 1,024,694
Benefit paid by the plan - -
Current service cost and interest 1,565,171 1,108,776
Past Service Cost - -
Defined benefit obligation at Ashadh end 8,595,495 5,549,546
Movement in the fair value of plan assets Note. 4.23.4
Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080

Fair value of plan assets at shrawan 1st - -
Contributions paid into the plan - -
Benefit paid during the year - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - -
Expected return on plan assets - -

Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end - -
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Salapa Bikas Bank Limited ’\

Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Amount recognized in profit or loss

Note. 4.23.5

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080

Current service cost 1,064,642 818,617

Past Service Cost -

Interest on obligation 500,529 290,159

Expected return on plan assets

Total 1,565,171 1,108,776
Amount recognized in other comprehensive income Note. 4.23.6

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Actuarial (gain) / loss 1,480,779 1,024,694
Total 1,480,779 1,024,694
Actuarial assumptions Note. 4.23.7

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Discount rate 9.00% 9.00%
Expected return on plan assets

Future salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate 30% 30%
Debt securities issued Note. 4.24

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Debt securities issued designated at fair value through profit
or loss
Debt securities issued at amortized cost

Total

Subordinated liabilities

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

Note. 4.25

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Redeemable preference shares
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares
Other

Total
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’\ Salapa Bikas Bank Limited

Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Share capital

Note. 4.26

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Ordinary shares 350,000,000 350,000,000
Convertible preference share(Equity component) - -
Irredeemable preference share(Equity component) - -
Perpetual debt(Equity component only) - -
Total 350,000,000 350,000,000
Ordinary shares Note. 4.26.1

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Authorized capital:

8,000,000 ordinary share of Rs.100 each 800,000,000 800,000,000
Issued capital:

52,23,880 ordinary share of Rs.100 each 522,388,000 522,388,000
Subscribed and paid of capital:

350,000 ordinary share of Rs.100 each 350,000,000 350,000,000
Total 350,000,000 350,000,000
Ordinary share ownership Note. 4.26.2

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Domestic ownership:
Nepal Government

"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions

Public

Other (Promoters) 350,000,000 350,000,000
Foreign ownership - -
Total 350,000,000 350,000,000
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Salapa Bikas Bank Limited ’\

Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

List of Shareholders holding shares on and above 0.5%

S.No. Name of Shareholders Shares Held % of Shareholding
1 Dhan Prasad Rai 30,600.00 0.87%
2 Manindra Rai 25,000.00 0.71%
3 Jiban Rana Magar 19,788.00 0.57%

Note: The Percentage of shareholding has been calculated as a percentage of share capital as per the
latest share lagat.
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’\ Salapa Bikas Bank Limited

Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Reserves Note. 4.27
Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Statutory General Reserve 8,250,747 8,188,225
Exchange equalization reserve - -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 192,306 191,895
Capital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 11,768,360 8,282,218

Investment adjustment reserve - -
Capital reserve - -
Assets revaluation reserve - -

Fair value reserve 315,554 -
Dividend equalization reserve - -
Actuarial gains (1,898,208) (861,663)

Special reserve - -
Other reserve - -

Staff Training Fund 1,782,210 1,174,772
Capital Adjustment Reserve - -
Others - -
Total 20,410,968 16,975,447

4.27.1 Statutory General Reserve

Statutory General Reserve is created as per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 equivalent to 20% of the
net profit earned during the year until the reserve is twice the paid-up share capital of the Bank after which 10% of the net profit
earned during the year shall be set aside as General Reserve.

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra Bank.

As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Opening 8,188,225 8,188,225
Addition for the Year 62,522 -
Utilization during the Year - -
Closing as on reporting date (31.03.2081) 8,250,747 8,188,225

4.27.2 Exchange Fluctuation Reserve Fund

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve is the reserve created as per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 equivalent
to 25% of the foreign exchange gain realized on the translation of foreign currency to the reporting currency during the year other
than Indian Rupees.

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra Bank other than to set off
revaluation loss incurred, if any during the year.

Bank doesnot deal with any currency other than Nepalese currency, hence this reserve creation is not applicable to the bank.
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Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

4.27.3 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating profit has been presented under this account head.

As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Opening Balance 191,895 191,895
Expenses made during the Year (2,715) -
Addition during the Year 3,126 -
Closing as on reporting date (31.03.2081) 192,307 191,895

4.27.4 Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this reserve as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose
of implementation of NFRSs and which has not been regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares)
has been presented under this account head. The amount allocated to this reserve includes interest income recognized but not
received in cash, difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRSs (in case
lower impairment is recognized under NFRSs), amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss recognized in other comprehensive
income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRSs etc.

As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Opening Reserve 8,282,218 7,916,038
Movement:
Accrued interest income 1,212,401 (1,980,391)
Fair value reserve for possible investment loss
Reserve for NBA
Deferred Tax Reserve 1,237,195 1,629,285
Bargain Purchased Gain
Actuarial Loss 1,036,545 717,286
Closing as on reporting date (31.03.2081) 11,768,360 8,282,218

For Detailed Disclosures Refer Note 5.10

4.27.5 Investment Adjustment Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve is created as per the regulatory requirement equivalent to 2% of investment securities classified as
available for sale which are not listed within the prescribed time except on investment on shares specifically allowed by Nepal
Rastra Bank. It is presented within other reserve in Statement of changes in equity.

Bank has not made any investment on shares of any company, hence not applicable.

4.27.6 Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets, and Investment Property) has
been presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not be fully
available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market values and tax consequences of revaluation.

No assets has been revalued during the reporting period, hence not applicable.
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Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

4.27.7 Fair Value Reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value and
the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. The cumulative amount
of changes in fair value of those financial assets has been presented under this account head.

As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Opening - -
Additions 450,791 -
Closing as on reporting date (31.03.2081) 450,791 -

4.27.8 Acturial Gains/Losses
Any gain/llosses due the actuarial valuation of defined benefit obligations (Gratuity) is recognised here.

As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Opening (861,663) (144,376)
Additions (1,036,545) (717,286)
Closing as on reporting date (31.03.2081) (1,898,209) (861,663)

4.27.9 Other Reserve Fund

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) has been presented under this by disclosing
accounting heads.

a. Staff Training & Development Fund

As per clause 6 of NRB Directive no. 6/079,the fund created for the purpose of employee training by allocating 3% of employee
expenses of previous year excluding staff bonus and winding up interest cost on staff loan. The fund is utilized for the training of
employees excluding CEO.

As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Opening 1,174,772 743,039
Addition During the Year* 928,013 811,748
Expenses to be incurred in CY 2,102,786 1,554,787
Expenses During the Year (320,576) (380,015)
Closing as on reporting date (31.03.2081) 1,782,210 1,174,772

b. Capital Adjustment Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve is the share application money received from promoters and shown here in others of Reserve and
Surplus as per direction of Nepal Rastra Bank.

As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Opening - 322,000,000
Addition/(Widthdrawl) During the Year - (322,000,000)

Capitalized to Share Capital During the Year - -

Closing as on reporting date (31.03.2081) - -
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Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Note No. 4.28

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment (Figures in NPR)
Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080
Contingent Liabilities 1,500,000 1,000,000
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 14,174,746 14,029,519
Capital commitment - -
Lease commitment - -
Litigation - -
Total 15,674,746 15,029,519

Note No. 4.28.1
Contingent Liabilities
Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Acceptance and Documentary credit
Bills for collection
Forward exchange contracts

Guarantees 1,500,000 1,000,000.00
Underwriting commitments - -
Other commitments - -
Total 1,500,000 1,000,000

Note No. 4.28.2
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Undisbursed amount of loans

Undrawn limits of overdraft 14,174,746 14,029,519
Undrawn limits of credit cards - -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - -
Undrawn limits of guarantee - -
Total 14,174,746 14,029,519

Note No. 4.28.3
Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2081

As at Ashad 31, 2080

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for
Sub Total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for
Sub Total

Total
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Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Note No. 4.28.4
Lease Commitments
Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payment under non cancellable

operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub Total - -
Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payment under non cancellable

operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub Total - -

Grand Total - _

Note No. 4.28.5
Litigation
Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2081 As at Ashad 31, 2080

Total - R
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Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

For the period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2080 and ending on Ashad 31, 2081
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Interest income

For the year ended 31st

(Figures in NPR)
Note: 4.29

For the year ended 31st

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Cash and cash equivalents 7,394,240 13,785,366
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions - -
Loans and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers 113,108,057 101,258,389
Investment securities - -
Loans and advances to staff 17,204,131 12,130,478
Other - -
Total interest income 137,706,428 127,174,234
Interest expense Note: 4.30

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 5,071,979 3,795,399
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits from customers 58,689,687 61,386,625
Borrowing - -
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Others* 1,512,220 1,548,313
Total interest expense 65,273,886 66,730,337

Others*: Interest Expenses booked due to applictaion of NFRS 16 Leases.
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Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

For the period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2080 and ending on Ashad 31, 2081
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Fees and Commission Income

Particulars

(Figures in NPR)
Note: 4.31

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

Loan Administration fees

Service fees

Consortium fees

Commitment fees

DD/TT/Swift fees

Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees
Prepayment and swap fees

Investment banking fees

Assets management fees

Brokerage fees

Remittance fees

Commission on letter of credit

Commission on Guarantee Contracts issued
Commission on share underwriting/issued
Locker rental

Other Fees and Commission Income

4,401,302 3,295,210

561,979 1,300,154

15,000 7,000

51,700 455,672

Total Fees and Commission Income

5,029,981 5,058,037

Fees and commission expense

Particulars

Note: 4.32

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080

ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees

Remittance fees and commission
Other Fees and Commission Expense

Total Fees and Commission Expense
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Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

For the period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2080 and ending on Ashad 31, 2081
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Net trading income

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081

(Figures in NPR)
Note: 4.33

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2080

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction
Other

Total Net trading income

Other operating income

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081

Note: 4.34

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2080

Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain
Gain/loss on sale of investment Securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment property
Fair value gain/loss on investment Securities
Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Locker rent

Other*

615,935

436,623

Total other operating income

615,935

436,623

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081

Note: 4.35

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2080

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with bank and financial
institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment property

3,403,245

212,712

Total impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

3,403,245

212,712
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Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

For the period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2080 and ending on Ashad 31, 2081
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

(Figures in NPR)

Personnel Expenses Note: 4.36

Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Salary 23,713,547 22,574,491
Allowances 8,497,981 8,359,285
Gratuity expenses 1,565,171 1,108,776
Provident fund 2,120,204 2,084,990
Uniform 799,600 784,450
Training & Development Expense 320,576 380,015
Leave encashment* 2,788,939 4,089,132
Medical - -
Insurance 1,640,960 1,640,214

Employees Incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension Expense - -
Finance expenses under NFRS 11,459,155 8,505,130
Other Expenses Related to Staff

Staff Recruitment Expenses - -

Sub-total 52,906,132 49,526,483
Staff Bonus 89,684 -
Grand Total 52,995,816 49,526,483

Leave encashment*: Out of Rs.2,788,939/-, Rs. 1521,949/- has been paid to employees as a part of force leave allowance, and Rs.
385,326/- has been paid to staff whose accumulated leave has exceeded the limit as per Employee Bylaws. Remaining Rs. 881,662/-
has been charged to expenses as a part of actuarial valuation of accumulated leave.

Other operating expenses Note: 4.37
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Directors' fee 142,000 125,000
Directors' expense - -
Auditors' remuneration 463,300 384,200
Other audit related expense 307,096 446,853
Professional and legal expense 518,200 302,129
Office administration expense 10,893,775 10,782,429
Operating lease expense 13,340 -
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense - -
Onerous lease provision - -
Other - -
Total other operating expense 12,337,711 12,040,611

*Auditor Remuneration comprises of fees in relation to statutory audit (Rs. 282,500/-) and internal Audit (Rs. 180,800).
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Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

For the period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2080 and ending on Ashad 31, 2081

Office administration expense

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

For the year ended 31st

(Figures in NPR)

Note: 4.37.1

For the year ended 31st

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Water and electricity 367,122 358,733
Repair and maintenance

Office Equijpments 34,970 155,199
Vehicle 1,522,740 1,462,133
Leasehold Properties - -
Computer and accessories 127,307 43,800
Insurance 1,394,500 1,337,355
Postage, telex, telephone, fax and internet 514,390 590,794
Printing and stationery 1,078,551 1,518,330
Advertisement 211,231 197,349
Travel allowance and expense 830,648 988,619
Entertainment 478,731 448,084
Annual/special general meeting expense 500,000 -
Registration and Renewal Expenses 1,338,494 1,345,120
Annual Maintainance Charges - 20,738
Fuel Expenses 1,401,805 1,420,369
Office Expenses 289,391 506,043
Cleaning Expenses 46,530 25,385
Fine and Penalties 189,945 300,607
Miscellaneous Expenses 567,421 63,770
Total 10,893,775 10,782,429
Depreciation and Amortization Note: 4.38

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2080

Depreciation on Property and Equipment 8,020,308 7,657,993

Depreciation on investment property -

Amortization of intangible assets 514,218 466,384
Total depreciation and amortization 8,534,525 8,124,377

Non operating income Note: 4.39

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2080

Recovery of loan written off
Other income

Total non operating income
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Salpa Development Bank Limited

Diktel, Khotang

For the period commencing on Shrawan 1, 2080 and ending on Ashad 31, 2081
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Non Operating Expense

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2081

(Figures in NPR)

Note: 4.40

For the year ended 31st
Ashad 2080

Loan Written Off
Redundancy provision
Expenses of restructuring
Other expense

Total non operating Expenses

Income tax expense

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

Note: 4.41

For the year ended 31st

Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Current tax expense 1,422,749 592,541
Current year 1,422,749 592,541
Adjustment for prior years - -
Deferred tax expense 928,198 (1,321,877)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 928,198 (1,321,877)
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 2,350,946.97 (729,336)
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit 4.41.1

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Particulars Ashad 2081 Ashad 2080
Profit before tax 807,161 (3,965,626)
Tax amount at tax rate of 30 % 242,148 (1,189,688)
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 1,180,600 2,626,889
Less: Tax effect on exempt income

Add/less: Tax effect on other items - (844,661)
Carried Forward Lossss - -
Total income tax expense 1,422,749 592,541
Effective tax rate 176.27% -14.94%
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Salpa Development Bank Limited
Diktel, Khotang

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

5.11 Detailed Disclosures of Regulatory Reserve

Particulars Interest Receivable Deferred Tax Actuarial Loss/ G.ain Regularoty
Assets Recoanized Reserve
Balance at Sharawan 1, 2074(Restated FS)* 510,484 - - 510,484
Changes in FY 2074.75 (Restated FS) 96,017 - - 96,017
Balance at Asahd End, 2075 606,500 - - 606,500
Changes in FY 2075.76 1,540,620 1,445,966 272,878 3,259,464
Balance at Ashad End, 2076 2,147,120 1,445,966 272,878 3,865,964
Changes in FY 2076.77 2,810,051 554,264 46,379 3,410,694
Balance at Ashad End, 2077 4,957,171 2,000,230 319,257 7,276,658
Changes in FY 2077.78 (3,048,917) 1,767,492 (256,465) (1,537,890)
Balance at Ashad End, 2078 1,908,254 3,767,722 62,792 5,738,768
Changes in FY 2078.79 2,352,079 (256,395) 81,586 2,177,270
Balance at Ashad End, 2079 4,260,333 3,511,327 144,378 7,916,038
Changes in FY 2079.80 (1,980,391) 1,629,285 717,286 366,180
Balance at Ashad End, 2080 2,279,942 5,140,612 861,664 8,282,219
Changes in FY 2080.81 1,212,401 1,237,195 1,036,545 3,486,141
Balance at Ashad End, 2081 3,492,343 6,377,808 1,898,209 11,768,360

*In first time adoption of NFRS, datas pertaining to Sharawan 1,2074 were restated and adjusted in FY 75.76.

5.12 Reconciliation of AIR as on Ashad End and Regulatory Reserve

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Accrued interest Recievable (AIR) as at Year End 9,190,248 7,245,787
Less : AIR of Bad Loans (3,646,846) (3,626,831)
Less: Cash Collection upto Window Provided by NRB* - -
Total 5,543,402 3,618,955
Opening Amount of Requlatory Reserve 2,279,942 4,260,333
Closing Amount of Requlatory Reserve after Tax and Bonus Impact 3,492,343 2,279,942
Net Movement in Regulatory Reserve in current financial year 1,212,401 (1,980,391)

*The bank has not opted the relaxation of provision provided by NRB and has calculated the regulatory reserve without adjustment of accured interest received after
Ashad End 2081 upto the window period provided by Nepal Rastra Bank.

5.13 Disclosures of Prior Period Adjustments
Following adjustments were made in the books of accounts as prior period adjusments and effect has been given in respective accounts and retained earning.

Particulars Amount
Reversal of Advance Tax Excess Booked 686,140
Total Adjustments 686,140
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